Minutes
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
Wednesday, May 12, 2010, 7:00 PM

MEMBERS: Chair Al Hartkopf, Vice Chair Tommy Sikes, Dave Regton, Eddie Sain, and

ABSENT:

STAFF:

PUBLIC:

ITEM #1:

ITEM #2:

ITEM #3:

MOTION:

VOTE:

ITEM #4:

Bill Whitmore.
Carla Lunsfordand Rod Jones, absences excused.

Senior Planner Tom King, Planning Director Margdfauth, Planner Stephanie
Trueblood, Planner Aspen Price, Town Manager ErmeRon, and Town
Attorney Bob Hornik.

Mayor Tom Stevens, Jeff Thompson, John RobertkeMiiammersley, Jim
Parker, Libby Hough, Elizabeth Read, and Holly Reid

Call meeting to order and confirm the presence of a quorum.
Chair Al Hartkopf called the meeting to order a@Z:p.m. and confirmed the
presence of a quorum.

Consideration of additions or changesto the agenda.
There were no additions or adjustments to the @aen

Approval of the April 14, 2010 minutes.

Mr. Remington noted a minor comment he had forwéurtdeMr. King via email,
where he had clarified a comment he had made regptde Planning Board
report and special exception permits on page f3@agraph. Mr. King noted
that the change had been made to the versionsém Board for review.

Mr. Remington moved to adopt the minutes of the April 14, 2010=timgy as
amended.Mr. Sain seconded.
Unanimous.

Continued Item - Review of the parking plan for the Orange County Justice
Facility. The Board conditionally approved this project on November 8,
2006. An approval condition required that the applicant present an
acceptable plan for remote parking facilities including process documents
covering their operation. The applicant intends to present an alternative
plan to the Board for consideration.

Mr. Hornik noted that those who had been previoushorn on this matter
continued to be sworn, and those who wanted to té&timony that had not been
sworn would need to do so.

Mr. King swore in John Roberts, Mike Hammersleyd &ayor Tom Stevens.



Mr. King stated that the new plan contained allthene components as the April
28, 2010 plan and now offered to construct a 25@smgravel parking lot behind
the Battle courtroom that would be south of thestxg courthouse and east of
South Churton Street. He said the County offecedoinstruct that lot only after
receiving proper approvals from the Town for itsmmbance with the
Development Ordinance, that the CCO (Conditionattifieate of Occupancy)
period yielded measured results requiring the meald for more parking, that the
UDO (Unified Development Ordinance) was adopted asthblished a new
standard for parking on the East Campus, and tietptoposed site plan and
additional conditions were approved by the Boar@ofinty Commissioners.

Mr. King said staff had proposed parking lot pland in regards to Item #1 there
were concerns about stormwater compliance regargisigme and nitrogen
loading, noting that there was potential that sate parking area would most
likely be in the 100-year floodplain, and that thr@wn’s ordinance did not allow
development or paving in the floodplain. He sdabaf concern was impact on
stream buffers, the potential for increased traHicthe intersection of East
Margaret Lane and South Churton Street and spaltyfisignal left turns, impacts
on documented archeological areas particularly saidantified along South
Churton Street and behind the courtroom at theemedtalf of the parking area,
screening and landscaping requirements in regarddC (Historic District
Commission) approval of tree removal, and impactsttee geothermal HVAC
system levels to the impacted area.

Mr. King said as far as the CCO that would prowiake Town the ability to collect

data regarding parking at the Justice Facility whparating at full capacity, but
staff believed that still would not give them timéarmation to determine what the
proper standard for the facility would be. He sdidwever, the information

would be useful to establish a new parking standatdat the Town wanted to be
confident that the adopted standards would estalblisappropriate standard for
additional parking for the facility.

Mr. King said in regards to Item#3 regarding thearping UDO and establishing
a new parking standard for the East Campus, whatBeeparking standards the
Town determined were in its best interest needduktthe determining factor for
the parking needed for this site. He said thatrsew UDO parking requirements
would establish the standard for parking, not gugtiideline; however, the current
draft language still would not provide the amouihparking that would be needed
at this time.

Mr. King said the applicant has indicated that {®posed site plan and
additional conditions were approved by the Orangeur®y Board of

Commissioners. He said in regards to that, if althl parking was determined
to be required during any CCO period, then stafieed they needed to set a
compliance date so that at the end of that timeattdtional parking would have
to be provided. Mr. King stated staff did not féelvould be appropriate for the

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



Board of Adjustment to approve the site plan subjecapproval conditions by
Orange County because that approval might be sean abdication by the Board
of its authority to impose reasonable conditionsessary for plan compliance.

Jeff Thompson, having already been sworn and spegdbirr the County, stated

that the guidance from the Board from the last mgatlearly was to bring back a

modified plan that would increase the supply otgifeet parking for the Justice

Facility expansion project. He said Mr. Sikes laa#ted that they respond with a
parking plan that would meet the current ordinaacel the last guidance was that
they were to reject the full time equivalent cadtidn assumption on employment
and to reject the useable square footage in fakéheogross square footage as
definition of floor space.

Mr. Whitmore said the Board had also asked thagdwluckner or other justice
staff be included in the discussion with the Coutatymake sure they had their
full support. Mr. Thompson said that was corred that did occur.

Mr. Thompson said the highlights of the plan wdrat tthey were prepared to
build up to a 256-space parking lot on the landcedain the site plan. He said if
that lot was built, they agreed that it would mebke current ordinance
requirements for parking. Mr. Thompson said theyuld get the lot designed,
permitted, and ready for construction, with thatrpto be held in readiness should
it be determined that it was necessary for constmicat the end of the UDO
rewrite process. He said that would also allow ahgnges to the UDO to be
dovetailed into the parking requirements for thignp Mr. Thompson said the
site plan would be contingent on the approval oé tBoard of County
Commissioners, noting they had reviewed the plahtha conditions and at this
point had approved it being presented to the Boaktjustment tonight.

Mr. Thompson said he wanted to respond to someiérty asked questions that
needed to be expounded upon. He said Mr. Remirgddrasked why the Board
was being pushed and why the plan was coming fahatthe last minute. Mr.

Thompson said he had submitted to Ms. Hauth parkimgess documents on
May 12, 2007 and the Board had issued a Zoning Gange Permit on May 21,

2007, with no conditions for parking. He said ©eunty believed the issue was
settled in terms of the issues that were preseatethe November 8, 2006
meeting.

Mr. Thompson provided the following informationback that up and to respond
to issues regarding background and planning.

» This particular site had been in planning sincerthié 1990’s and at its
last meeting the Town Board had asked that thet @mtivities not leave
downtown Hillsborough.

* A summary packet was being provided to the Boaatl ¢tbntained County
Commissioner documents that involved the planniraegss from 2001
through 2005, which noted that the Town had begolved with that on

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



several levels. If you looked through those documgou would find that
every stakeholder in Hillsborough had been involvedthe planning
throughout the process.

* In November of 2001 Freeman White was engaged addlotted a six-
deck parking facility along Cameron Street.

* In 2002 the County and the Town Board had receaedipdate on the
planning process.

* In 2004 Corley Redfoot Zack was selected as theitaat, and for 2 years
had participated in the planning that involved gwakeholder.

* In November of 2006 the Special Exemption Permis wequested and
granted; the issuance of the Zoning Compliance Remas in May of
2007; and, the assumptions in 2006 were in effettadhering to the
strictest reading of the Code. Both on-street ipgrland Durham Tech
parking were rejected in March 2010.

Mr. Thompson said a recurring question was did ¢beent revision to the
conditions, the potential addition of 256 spaceseinthe current ordinance. He
said the answer was absolutely, unequivocally ecabse it did not exist today.
However, he said, if they went through the procasd if the Board instructed
them to build up to 256 spaces and if they didiseyould meet the strictest
reading of the ordinance today. Mr. Thompson shithat 256-space facility
existed today it would meet the current ordinancd any future UDO rewrite
because the requirement would be 255 spaces. itiéf sae UDO was adopted
as drafted without the assembly standard, thein pba a 256-space lot would
continue to meet the ordinance because only 100ldwvba required. Mr.
Thompson said if they followed the UDO with theerably standard, they met it
again because only 220 would be required. Soaiuk this plan as designed and
if built would meet all of the parking issues dissad previously.

Mr. Thompson said another question was if the En@iRParking Deck spaces
could be counted toward the Justice Facility deficider the current ordinance,
and the answer was unequivocally no because they alleallocated to the West
Campus. He said one question was if the Countydisalissed the potential of
the Eno River Parking Deck spaces being utilizedtiie Justice Facility/East
Campus parking, and the answer was yes and thgsasgdions were ongoing.
Mr. Thompson said the point here was the issud®fUDO freeing up spaces
which was a real possibility, but again it did no¢et the current ordinance.

Mr. Thompson said they had actually received datshe courts after instituting
full loads on courts which began on May 3, 2010hwitie exception of traffic
court which would not begin until June, so they evapt at full capacity at this
time. However, he said, they did have some roaiesdata from May 3 through
today. Mr. Thompson said another question was thed County enacted
voluntarily any of the proposed conditions, and @hewer was yes. He said the
court management system was in place, the PayNEflockn website portal was
operational and was expected to reduce trafficittnby 15% to 20%, and they

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



were working on parking directional signage hightigg the general availability
of parking.

Mr. Thompson said the highest days in terms of dbckunts were in the 400’s
to 500’s which had happened on Monday, May 3 andhddg, May 10, with
those people visiting the facility between 9 a.md 4 p.m. He said with that they
were showing 80 spaces available in the Governi8entices lot and about the
same number in the Eno River Parking Deck. Sosdié, there was sufficient
parking in and around the courthouse even on thesery docket days not
including traffic court.

Mike Hammersley, having already been sworn, withl€§oRedfoot Zack and the
civil engineer for the project who had designed shkematic parking plan now
before the Board, stated that they had been askeédke a look at a piece of
property owned by the County just south of the texgsfacility and determine
what was possible in the way of any additional pegk He said that was a
schematic plan at present since it had not yet bagmeered, and described how
the parking would fit on the site. Mr. Hammersksid not shown on the plan
was compact spaces, noting they were allowed te haleast 25% of the spaces
as compact spaces so adjustments might be madeegswent through the
process. He said if constructed it would be doutside of the floodplain and
within the Town’s guidelines and requirements, udahg those for stormwater
management and landscaping.

Mr. King said that the Town’s Flood Damage PrevamOrdinance regulated the
100-year floodplain, not the 500-year floodplain sk®wn on a staff prepared
flood map.

Mr. Remington said that it appeared that some & phroposed parking
encroached onto the floodplain on the east edgelicaghe driveway. Mr.
Hammersley said that the drive access to the pgnkiould be through the lot in
order to avoid the floodplain. Mr. Remington peitout that that was not the
correct map of the existing parking lot, in thatvds modified two weeks ago and
this version was the previous version of that méje asked if Mr. Hammersley
was saying that the south end corresponded to éhermap. Mr. Hammersley
said again it was a schematic used to show wher@dhking would be located.
He pointed out on the map where the drive wouldobated from East Margaret
Lane, noting if the 100-year floodplain came in fao they would adjust that
drive to avoid it; perhaps losing 3 spaces thatld/bave to be placed elsewhere.
Mr. Hammersley emphasized that the schematic wasnimenly to show the
potential for a parking lot.

Mr. Whitmore said they knew where the 100-year diglain line was and the
applicant was acknowledging that it would perhapsr@ach into the eastern
section of that floodplain. Mr. Hammersley saitadly it did not cut the east off
at all, noting it was on the very edge of the saitle. He said once they placed

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



compact spaces in the construction documents tloeydpull the line up for both
to avoid the floodplain. Mr. Hammersley said tivequld need to get the survey
on the plans to determine physically where the epactually were so that there
was no speculation as to any encroachment int@éQBeyear floodplain.

Mr. Remington said he would certainly disagree tase comparing the 100-year
floodplain line and the east end of the parkingwais relative to the buildings
there. He said the whole east bank of parkinggslagere encroaching. Mr.
Hammersley said the elevation was 507%: feet thrabgh 100-year floodplain,
and the parking was outside of that area. Heregéd that the schematic was for
discussion purposes and there was an area wharkiaglot could be built.

Mr. Sikes asked would the lot be a permanent pgrkit. Mr. Hammersley

replied yes, that it would be a gravel parking Iddr. Sikes asked how much
grading would be necessary. Mr. Hammersley sag Would have to cut down
enough to create a subgrade and then put in storie they would need to build
curb and islands to protect the landscaping, aed gnovide whatever stormwater
management was necessary.

Mr. Remington asked what the estimated cost was. Hdmmersley said he had
no idea because it had not yet been designed.R&mington wondered if it was
something the County could afford to do.

Mr. Sikes said he would be interested in seeingst comparison versus paying
for a shuttle to the Durham Tech park and ride lot.

Mr. Thompson said their direction was to meet theent ordinance and that lot
would meet the ordinance. He said the Durham Tethdid not meet the
ordinance.

Mr. Sain said he believed in 2006 there was disonsabout a shuttle. Mr.
Thompson that the record showed that that had Hesussed but the County
Commissioners had not committed to that.

Mr. Hartkopf said he was holding in his hand thenmes from the meeting of
November 8, 2006, which included the discussiommdigg the issue of a shuttle
bus. He read an excerpt from those minutes: “Msed said the County
Commissioners had already set aside funds to figidiile service. She said this
was not a concept, rather it was a grant providetié Durham Tech campus and
it had been their plan all along to utilize thopaces to get people to downtown
Hillsborough.” Mr. Hartkopf said after that dissisn he had made a motion
which read, in part: “Mr. Hartkopf moved to granteSPlan approval for the
Courthouse expansion with the following contingesci a. that presentation of
acceptable remote parking facilities and processuhents covering the
operation thereof were received;...” He said thaambéo him that the Board did
have latitude that they exercised for the bendfithe Town, and they exercised

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



that latitude at that point in time to say thatytiaere willing to let the County, on
the County’s word, use Durham Tech as a park atedfar their employees. Mr.
Hartkopf said in fact, Orange County had had ndl@m with coming back to
the Board 2 months ago and saying that the cityzkad to park at Durham Tech
and ride downtown to pay their parking tickets. t,Bhe said, the County seemed
to have an “awful” problem telling its employeesaittthey had to park at Durham
Tech and ride the bus into downtown. Mr. Hartkggid he had an awful
problem with that.

Mr. Hartkopf said the Board had set a condition &nwaas to be met, noting

verbiage that had been mentioned previously hadnee of law. He said in fact,

that individual had perpetrated a terminologicaxactitude in saying that the
County had already set aside funds for a shuttlicgeand it was not a concept.
Mr. Hartkopf said that was the condition under whibe site plan approval was
granted. Mr. Thompson said that the transportatiervices that the County
funded was now in existence, which was the TT (igia Transit) 420 line as
reported in the Board’s March 10, 2010 meeting.skid there was nothing in the
record that talked about a dedicated shuttle fgpleyees independent of the TT
420 line. Mr. Thompson displayed an exhibit detevember 16, 2006 that was
delivered to Ms. Jones from Ms. Hauth, which was shmmary received after
that Board of Adjustment meeting. He said thatesgre 5 stated that “a written
plan for the remote off-site parking facility antd ioperations provided to staff
before the zoning permit is issued for the projectdemonstrate limitations
provided for employees parking on the campus.” ddil that document was
provided and the Zoning Compliance Permit was @dsagad his point was it was
reasonable for the County to think that it had ppraval to follow on with a very

expensive construction project with the parkingpfaplace. Mr. Thompson said
a lot had been built, the TT 420 line was operatiagd those where the
commitments made by Ms. Jones in the set of mimefesred to.

Ms. Hauth stated that the Zoning Compliance Pewas contingent on a letter
that staff received to address parking during tloastruction only. Mr.
Thompson said that was not the instruction fromBbard. Ms. Hauth agreed.
Mr. Thompson said he was not saying it was not lerahtic but he was saying
that that was what had happened. Ms. Hauth said again that the Town was
pressed to issue a permit when they had not retdhe information from the
County. She said they had received a plan on amatipnal, temporary parking
situation during construction that generated a taany parking lot off of South
Cameron Street, which included the use of FirsttBaghurch as well as the
creation of a temporary gravel parking lot allowsdthe Town contrary to the
Zoning Ordinance in order to work with the Countydaallow them to move
forward with their project.

Mr. Hartkopf asked was that gravel parking lot tree he had asked about the
possibility of using. Ms. Hauth said that was ecty noting the permit for that lot

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



was clearly temporary and clearly required thabet eliminated as soon as
possible and the County had complied with that.

Mr. Hartkopf asked Mr. Hornik to elaborate on theck of law behind the

conditions set forth in the minutes by the Board] were they held by any other
standard or any other process other than thosdtmrslset forth when they had
granted the conditional site plan approval. Mrrilo said the conditions set out
on November 8, 2006 went unappealed and were atlath the site plan

approval. He said in his estimation what the Cpuwrs asking for at this point
was modification of the site plan approval to amémak condition, essentially,

because their plan no longer called for the usth@fsatellite parking at Durham
Tech and the shuttle service to accommodate thidngarequirements for the

Justice Facility. Mr. Hornik said the way he urgleod the application the
County acknowledged that that condition was notndpeutilized, that they

acknowledged that they did not meet the parkingdsted, and they were asking
the Board to allow for the issuance of a CCO wlhiley and the Town tried to
come up with something different to satisfy thekpay standard for the Justice
Facility. He said right now, that conditional appal was the law.

Mr. Thompson reiterated it was their contentiort tha conditions had been met,
in that the lot existed, the bus existed and at timae on-street parking was
counted. He said today, this Board had rejected tine on-street parking be
counted. Mr. Thompson said the number of spacéserDurham Tech lot was
125, and the on-street spaces was 55, so they owexe the 168 that were
discussed in 2006. He said in moving forward avaking at the plan, if you

were to hold to the 125 spaces that were discusséehgth and agreed upon in
2006, and you were to allow the on-street parkisgvas allowed in 2006, this
additional parking would not be up 256 but would 125, and would meet the
intent of the 2006 meeting.

Mr. Sikes asked if they had any process documdmds showed that. Mr.
Thompson said it was in the packet and was dategd Ia 2007 from Ms. Jones
to Ms. Hauth. Mr. Sikes asked did they have oreiip to that condition.

Ms. Hauth said that letter spoke only to the useaajravel lot for employee
parking during construction, and she had neverivedea document that spoke to
any kind of shuttle service.

Mr. Hornik said according to the condition, thabgess document was supposed
to address the open question that the Board atillih November 2006 about how
people would get from Durham Tech to the Justicellija He said while the
Zoning Ordinance allowed remote parking, it did cohtemplate remote parking
2 miles away, noting the limit under the Zoning @ethce was 400 feet. Mr.
Hornik said under the circumstances presentedet®tiard in November of 2006
and reflected by the minutes, there were or woeld B5 spaces and the County

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



was committing to provide some process documentbiadBoard to show how
that remote parking would work for the Justice Fgci

Mr. Hartkopf added they were also to show how theyuld ensure that an
employee who was assigned to park there woulddhgdark there and not park
elsewhere. He said the word “shuttle” was used aatd the TT route or
something else. Mr. Hartkopf said the Board wdd tbe money was set aside
for a shuttle, and the question was how the Cowutyld ensure that employees
would park in a specific place and not some othaecegp He said that was a tall
order for the County to come up with; however, thas the burden the County
accepted in 2006 as reflected in the record, aadBttard had been assured that
the County would work that out.

Mr. Whitmore said actually the record said the GQgumas proposing to offset
that. Mr. Thompson said the County had built thteaind was providing the TT
420 transportation, and that was real.

Mr. Sikes said that did not have anything to ddwtite site, and it was very clear
what the conditions of approval were. Mr. Thompsaid there were years of
discussion about putting parking at the Durham T&tdy and the chronology of
planning from 2001 to 2007 reflected that. He sh&te was the reality that the
Eno River Parking Deck did not exist in 2006 andwat contemplated in 2006,
and the conversation had gone from 125 with orestparking to no on-street
parking and they should utilize the parking deddr. Thompson said he was
attempting to put on the record the conversatiohesinderstood it from 2006,
noting he believed the County’s current plan wapractical and reasonable
approach given where they were today.

Mr. Hornik said he wanted to also make sure themkceflected that had the
Board received the process documents that showedtt County planned to

transport people from the Durham Tech lot to thetide Facility, they would not

be here today, because that would have satisfied dbndition and an

unconditional CO (Certificate of Occupancy) could ibsued. But, he said, that
was not the County’s plan and that was why theyewere.

Mr. Thompson said that was correct, that the Cowayg not providing that plan
and from what Mr. Hornik had said if he was promglia process document
where employees were going to be forced to paditeffand the Board approved
that, then they would be moving on but he was nepared to do that.

Mr. Sain said he was understanding that the Cowatyproposing to provide the
gravel parking lot but only if the County deemedéeded. Mr. Thompson said
as he understood the conversation at the previ@eting, it had gone along the
lines that they understood the conditions and Hmgyreciated the conditions, but
what happened if nothing worked; that is, what s plan or the back stop
then? He said the plan they were presenting novedes that back stop.

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



10

Mr. Sain said then again, if they did not build&cause they did not believe they
needed it then the plan would continue to not nthet requirements of the

ordinance. Mr. Thompson agreed, noting it did meet the ordinance because it
was not yet built. He said he was proffering aditbon that said that this Board

had the authority, and with no loss of vested gghd require that the lot be built

at a time certain after they understood what ttvaie capacity and true demands
were. He said the only difference was they hadekstop to build something

that satisfied the current ordinance. Mr. Saim $hey did not have a guarantee
that they could build that lot, noting they hadget approval from the Historic

District Commission for tree removal. Mr. Thompsgaid that was correct, and
they acknowledged that they would have to go thinotngpse processes but they
were reasonable because the processes had to thédaw.

Mr. Sikes said for the Board to issue a tempora®;, @en they were basically
throwing responsibility to people who were not timstBoard. Mr. Thompson
said that was the normal process, noting they wdtludeth get information back
from those people not on this Board which said webr not the plan met the
law, and then they could make the ruling.

Mr. Sikes said usually the condition was did it inée ordinance, or did it not,
not did it have the potential to meet the ordinaiidbe lot was ever built. He
said that was an important distinction. Mr. Thoompsaid he believed they all
understood the parking requirement was heavy ilslbtrough as had been stated
on the record multiple times. He said he did nelidve anyone in the room
believed they needed 256 spaces to satisfy whaldwwobably happen with the
rewrite of the UDO going forward. Mr. Thompson dsdie believed they all
understood there was available parking in Town, hadbelieved this was a
reasonable plan to satisfy the 256-space requireamehit could be engineered to
show that within the reasonable confines of therexeging process.

Mr. Sikes said he appreciated that, but engineettirapnd having it were two
different things. Mr. Thompson agreed, but saithudd that lot with the current
environmental and engineering constraints was nmeaah in that it was not an
unreasonable schematic plan.

Mr. Hartkopf said he believed there were issueaddress, referring to items la
thru h, and 2, 3, and 4 with Town staff to getel fghere they were coming from.

Mr. Thompson provided a summary, as follows:

* They understood the proposed plan, if approveddgte a conditional
approval and the Board would lose no vested righfsower.

* They understood completely that the plan did natenily satisfy the
ordinance because the lot was not yet build, bey thelieved it was a
reasonable plan to move forward concurrently witte tconditions
proposed on April 28, 2010.

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



11

* They were prepared to design, seek approval, peandt construct that
parking lot alternative, and that once directedthisy Board or the Town
would be in compliance with the current ordinancehey believed that
proposal satisfied the Board’s request for a back sequested on April
28, 2010.

* They requested that the Board approve or deny libngs a continuance
had the effect of a denial without the County hgwamy recourse.

Mr. Hartkopf said he believed the plan had yetddogfore the Board of County
Commissioners, but also believed he had heard ithaiready had. Mr.
Thompson said the County Commissioners would havapprove the final site
plan once it was engineered and once the approveégs had been satisfied. He
said the County Board had given him the authodtggeak to that schematic plan
and were in support of him speaking about that pahis Board.

Mr. Hartkopf said then the County Commissionersenawrare of that schematic.
Mr. Thompson replied yes. Mr. Hartkopf asked whed the County Board
become aware of this process as far as coming baoyet the CO. Mr.

Thompson said they were aware of the plan at imat t Mr. Hartkopf said then it
was safe to say that the County Commissioners gtatet that the County was
going to ask citizens to park at Durham Tech rattiian employees. Mr.
Thompson said the County Commissioner understoad there was a lot
provided and transportation provided.

Mr. Whitmore asked for an update on conversatioith &no River Parking
Deck, LLC and Judge Buckner's progress. Mr. Thampsaid he had not
attended those meetings so he could not spealatphbtht he understood that the
County Manager had met with the Eno River ParkimeglDrepresentatives but he
did not know the content of those conversationse ddid Judge Buckner had
provided to him today several photos of the vagaarking lots during heavy
court days.

Mr. Sikes asked who had created the presentatitineippacket. Mr. Thompson
replied Freeman White Architects who were engaggdhle County to do the
Master Plan. Mr. Sikes said then that was predertte the County
Commissioners. Mr. Thompson replied yes.

Mr. Sikes noted that the presentation talked alzoditee-standing multi-level
parking structure possibly being constructed asgfehe construction, and it also
spoke to 500+ vehicle capacity, that traffic was fhimary challenge, and that
one of the biggest concerns was how to preservevitia from East Margaret
Lane. Mr. Thompson said that was correct, notiedndd mentioned in the April
28, 2010 meeting that there had always been a mitvelen aesthetics, the
environment and the capacity for vehicles. Mr.eSilasked was Pam Jones still
with the County. Mr. Thompson replied yes.

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



12

Mr. King swore in Jim Parker.

Mr. Hartkopf said he understood that Mr. Parker had discussions with the
County over some period of time about the possibke of the Eno River Parking
Deck as adjunct or primary parking for the Juskeeility, and hastened to add
that the details of those conversations were hg&nlegs and the business of the
County. He said until the County allowed thosevasgations to become public
record he was not really required to respond tdhang unless he chose to do so.
But, he said, he would like to get some clarifioatfor the Board with regards to
the conversation around the use of the parking degotential use of that deck
for the Justice Facility. Mr. Parker said sincdyeMarch when this was to come
back before the Board of Adjustment, they reallg hat known that there was a
problem with the deficiency in parking. He saiderhh had been some
conversation in late December 2009 in regards #olahility of parking for the
library, but other than that they were not awaere¢hwas a parking deficit for the
Justice Facility until early March 2010. Mr. Parksaid since that time, there had
been no conversations or meetings with the Countiy just recently.

Mr. Parker said after the March 10 meeting and thensubsequent meetings,
there had been a lot of discussion about how thatyespaces in the deck could
be utilized. He said it seemed from the emaily there receiving and seeing was
that it was unclear to the County of how to tryatidress the issue by using the
parking deck. Mr. Parker said the County Managet $ent them an email about
2 weeks ago indicating that he did not understaowl the deck spaces could be
counted that were empty and subsequently he haeladgls. Hauth to provide
them an overall picture of how that might happed she had done so. He said
he had then forwarded that back to the County,adrtde same time their attorney
had provided the same kind of response back tcCthenty just to make sure it
was clear. Mr. Parker said once that was dong, hleard nothing else from the
County.

Mr. Parker said Wednesday or Thursday of last wedlenever the packet had
gone out to this Board that contained the site,fdlay had then seen the site plan
of the parking lot behind the Justice Facility dratl thought it was very large.
He said their thought was surely there was stitlgamfusion that the deck could
be used in some way, and they had taken it upandékes to call the County
Manager and asked for a meeting regarding that. Rdrker said they had met
with the County Manager on Thursday afternoonwastk and discussed how the
County might have the ability to use the deck spacdde said the County
Manager seemed to understand their explanatiodsataimat point they had never
talked about specific numbers as far as leasinguochasing spaces in the deck,
but they had advised him that they were willinguork with the County to solve
the problem and thought that that was the soludioth that that was understood.
Mr. Parker said once the meeting had ended, theéyeard nothing.

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



13

Mr. Hartkopf said as it stood right now, the geherblic that had business in the
Justice Facility could use available spaces indigek. Mr. Parker said yes, on a
fee basis. Mr. Hartkopf said 200 spaces were @rézased by the County. Mr.

Parker said 200 exactly. Mr. Hartkopf said thdt 209 spaces for public use.
Mr. Parker said that was correct. Mr. Hartkopfdsaihat they were seeing the
deck right now was not anywhere near being fulllized. Mr. Parker said that

was correct, noting about 1% was being utilized.

Mr. Hartkopf said he was not directing his commemtMr. Parker but there
seemed to be some conversation going back and dbxht whether or not the
deck could be used. He said the Board could vaiteondition that said the
County could use the Durham Tech parking lot.

Mr. Hornik stated there was an important differebeeveen the Durham Tech lot
and the parking deck, which was that the Countyemar controlled the Durham
Tech lot, but the Eno River Parking Deck was owaed controlled by an entity
in which the County had no interest, and with whilse County had no contract
or lease or any other arrangement that would dieeGounty the right to speak
for those available parking spaces. He said it igsortant to remember that
there were available parking spaces in that dedause the uses that were
already on the West Campus based on employee caumdtssquare footage
required that number of parking spaces. Mr. Hosald in effect those parking
spaces were spoken for even though half were emigeysaid in order for East
Campus uses to be able to count the West Campueesplaere needed to be
several things that happened. Mr. Hornik saidehereded to be an agreement
between the County and the owners of those spae¢svbuld give the County
the right to use those spaces; there would haveeteome kind of zoning text
amendment that would allow those spaces to be fipddom what chained them
to West Campus use; and there would probably hae tsome modification to
the permits for the West Campus uses that right said they had to have a
certain number of parking spaces. Mr. Hornik ghmke last two steps would be
tied together somewnhat.

Mr. Hartkopf said the timeline to allow all of thet happen might be extensive.
Mr. Hornik said theoretically it could be done in2amonth period if all the
processes worked perfectly.

Mr. Sikes asked if the lease was the document Mrnik had referred to. Mr.
Hornik said if they said to the County that it walsay to count those available
parking spaces, one might say the Town was infnggdn the rights of the
owners of the Eno River Parking Deck and puttingjrtipermit at risk because
they were overloaded with parking as currently negliby the ordinance.

Mr. Hartkopf said even if Orange County were to edim some agreement with
Eno River Parking Deck, LLC the Board was sayirgg there was still the matter
of the ordinance that they would be infringing upon

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



14

Mr. Sikes said true, because technically thoseespaere not available.

Planner Stephanie Trueblood, having previously lsseorn, stated that they had
been talking about the reallocation process beedytb the UDO rewrite process
which they all understood would likely take untietend of the year to complete.
However, she said, the text amendment that Mr. iareferred to would not
necessarily have to be a part of the rewrite anddcbe pursued at the quarterly
public hearing in July 2010.

Mr. Hartkopf asked if he understood that. Mr. Rarktated he understood 90%
of it. He said they had wanted only to sit dowrthwthe County Manager and
make sure there was no misunderstanding wherewhers of the parking deck
stood. Mr. Hartkopf said, to clarify, they had dhe&cent conversations with the
County about the parking issue. Mr. Parker saity ehe meeting with the
County Manager and no others.

Mr. Remington said there was something in the parkirdinance that did allow
double counting that tangentially could be seerhagng some relevance here
even if it did not literally apply. He said thedanance said that spaces assigned
to one use may not be assigned to another use aathe time or any other time
except that one half of the parking spaces as medjior uses such as, but not
limited to, churches, theaters and assembly hdilsse peak attendance may be at
night can be assigned to another use which wouybeéreence peak usage during
the day. Mr. Remington said it went on to say tiet Zoning Officer would
make the determination relative to peak usages.sai if they went one step
beyond the literal language and talked about plideswhat they had seen from
the courts in regards to scheduling provisionspead out parking needs, he
wondered if somewhere in that process there wag sagygle room based on that
ordinance language.

Mr. Hornik said the idea of that language was itiytad a use that primarily
would require parking at night or on weekends, amdther use that would
basically be 8 a.m. to 5 p.n. on weekdays, thdtdiahe parking spaces could be
counted for both uses because their peak timesdamtlbe competing with each
other.

Mr. Sikes said with the new UDO and the new reqaeet and text amendment,
would they be able to allocate all of those 209itamithl spaces. Ms. Trueblood
said it depended on the standard selected, ndtiagthe Planning Board was
currently reviewing two possible standards for ©entral Commercial zoning

district which would be their new downtown parkisigndard. She said the Eno
River Parking Deck was in that district, so it wabdiall under that standard. Ms.
Trueblood said the 2 standards being considered aithver 123 or 247; however,
the Planning Board was in very early stages imr ttlisicussions and they did not
know what direction those discussions would ta&be said they may accept one

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



15

of those standards, or choose something in the lenidd something totally
different.

Mr. Sikes said if the requirement happened to turhto be 123, then the 125 at
the Durham Tech lot would meet that. Mr. Sikesedskhy the Durham Tech lot
was off the table. Mr. Thompson replied that waguastion for the County
Commissioners. Mr. Sikes said that needed to ldeeaded, because just to say
they would never ask their employees to park relypoteas frustrating. Mr.
Thompson said if the UDO was completed and 123espacre freed up, then
obviously the County and the Eno River Parking Dewakers needed to have a
discussion. He said his point was that under tlieeat ordinance they had to go
through the process, and that was why profferirgcttnditional period to do that
as well as to engineer the 256-space lot.

Mr. Hartkopf asked why no one was parking in thekde Ms. Trueblood said
based on the parking study they had conductedeiriath of 2009, the daily count
was somewhere about 150 to 170 spaces availalilshbuid not have counts of
the parking deck since the County offices and tptzad opened. She said the
owners of the deck might have a better perspectivevhy there were so many
available spaces.

Mr. Thompson said he believed there were betwedh &t 190 public paid
spaces available daily between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m.sdill they also experienced
some vacancy with the paid spaces as well.

Mr. Whitmore asked where the leased spaces weateldc Mr. Thompson stated

that there were 120 leased spaces on the top akttlebehind the gate and below
were 41 free spaces for County customer parkind,the balance of the leased
spaces were for County vehicles and County empfoydde said the spaces in

between the two and bottom levels of the deck wileze209 spaces not leased by
the County.

Mr. Whitmore asked what has changed since thentesiting. Mr. Thompson
said some employees had already begun working, thiéh most significant
change being that 2 of the 4 courtrooms were nowsea with two cashiers
available. He said they were moving people throtighcourt process quickly,
very much as had been represented by Mr. StanfoddJadge Buckner at the
special meeting on April 28, 2010. Mr. Thompsoid dhey were going to be
putting up plexi-glass dividers so that more casb@pacity would be created as
well as considering putting up more parking signtet people know that as they
weaved through the lot they could come back oatetranother 150 yards, and
park in the Government Services Annex lot that aimetd 94 spaces. He said
about 80% of that lot was empty and available f&®,even when court had been
in full session on May 3 and May 10, 2010. Mr. friipson said on those days the
street parking along South Cameron was empty, tbuias fairly full on East

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



16

Margaret Lane and people were parking illegallytingrass south of the Market
House.

Mr. Whitmore said if they were a fully operatiorfatility compared to today’s
vehicle count, would there be an overflow of pagkirMr. Thompson said he felt
strongly that if they could direct people to that, lthen that lot would stay full.
He said he felt strongly that the parking deck wlosge more paying customers
because it was available. Mr. Thompson said hsopatly did not believe they
would have an overflow of parking even on the hestviof traffic court days
based on what they had seen so far and based ometmires that were being put
into place.

Mr. Sikes asked when the County Commissioners wowddt meet. Mr.
Thompson responded there was a work session seueftultomorrow night, but
it was not open for public comment. Mr. Sikes askéhen would be the first
opportunity for public comment. Mr. Thompson resped at the County
Commissioners June 1, 2010 meeting.

Mr. Hornik asked when the next stage was of cobdnges. Mr. Thompson
responded Wednesday, June 2, 2010 was the firsbdagffic administration.
Mr. Hornik asked what that session would be likdr. Thompson said that traffic
citations would instruct people to appear at steggjémes between 8:30 a.m. and
noon, so they would not all show up at the same.tinklle said upon arriving
those people would report to the Mural Courtroosuasng it was available to
them and would then be escorted to either courtso®nd, or the vault depending
on their case. Mr. Thompson said the first, secand fourth Wednesdays of the
month was when all of that would happen. He sa@&lthird Wednesdays of the
month were reserved for attorneys representingtslieso the numbers of people
would be dramatically fewer. Mr. Thompson said erriving at the Mural
Courtroom the judge would issue an administratingepfor those persons to be
parked legally, and would include a handout thatilbandicate where public
parking was available including at the Eno Riverkitey Deck. He said he would
then issue instructions for people to go and pagdally. Mr. Thompson said at
the same time signage would help to direct peoplehbse facilities with
available parking. He said since those people @vbelin three different process
areas and had staggered arrival times the cyckewas about one hour according
to the Clerk of Court, Mr. Sanford. Mr. Thompsaaids after the noon hour,
parking became even more available. He reiterbhtedvas talking about those
three Wednesdays each month.

Mr. Hornik said it was his understanding that tloeirt was coming whether the
CCO was issued or not, and that Judge Bucknertanddurts would have to do
that without that space available. He said in otherds, the traffic was coming
regardless.

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



17

Mr. Hartkopf asked then what the point was. Mroifipson said they just would
not use the Mural Courtroom

Mr. Sikes said if the Board never approved it theyuld never use the Mural
Courtroom.

Mayor Stevens said he was bringing a message ftoen Town Board of
Commissioners, and read a statement summarizedllagd: The Town Board
appreciated the complexity, the significance, dredliurden of responsibility that
this current issue placed upon the Board of Adjesitimand they knew that their
job was not easy. They imagined that from whesy tkat it would be easy to
second-guess or wonder whether there was sometiegific that the Town
Board would like to see happen, so he would likbdcexplicit about that. They
recognized that only the Board of Adjustment hael #uthority to decide the
issues before them on the Justice Facility appiinaand the Town Board did not
want to steer or pressure them to any particul&comoe other than the outcome
that whatever action the Board took had followegrapriate review and due
process as required by the Zoning Ordinance. Ty expected the Board of
Adjustment to execute its charge and conduct doeess with thoroughness,
with thoughtfulness, fairness, and integrity, ameyt commended their track
record of doing that and thanked them for theiviset

Libby Hough, after having been sworn, noted she syggsaking on behalf of the
Chamber of Commerce. She said the Chamber wamtegjister its opposition to
the alternative parking plan, noting that the phaould allow the County to wait
and see if a parking issue really existed, to velx&tnt it existed, and if need be to
build a gravel lot behind the Justice Facility. .N#ough said they opposed that
plan because parking was already an issue, towregdy occurred, and both of
those situations already negatively impacted thewntown merchants.

Ms. Hough said that River Park was park land anduzh added value to the
community in the way a parking lot would not. S$ad the identified interim
and long term solutions did not address the alresghyificant traffic issues on
East Margaret Lane. Ms. Hough said several yegostlae possible parking lot
was deemed by an archeological study as spaceawgtieological, cultural, and
historical significance. She said the potentiatkjpey area was also in a
floodplain, and would therefore not yield as mamaces as proposed. Ms.
Hough said the identified space was along the eotnyidor to the historic
Hillsborough business district, and a gravel loswat an attractive welcome mat
for visitors.

Ms. Hough said the County generated plan originapiproved by the Town 4
years ago included provision for remote parkindpatham Tech, and that plan
was sound as it would provide safe, convenientspartation to courthouse
patrons while reducing traffic in Town. She sdithat was no longer an option
they believed there were other options equally lejaimcluding the negotiating

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



18

for additional spaces at the parking deck. Ms. dthosaid there may be other
options that did not include destruction of thedahtong the Eno River.

Ms. Hough said it was their understanding thatTthe/n was open to discussing
alternatives for the parking issue, and they eragesl those discussions to
continue until a different, mutually agreeable soluwas identified. She said the
Chamber was dedicated to promoting economic dexsop in the region, and
knew that solid relationships between governingé®mdnd relationships between
governments and business communities were criticathieving that goal. Ms.
Hough offered the Chamber’s assistance in thosisisons if needed.

Elizabeth Read, having been previously sworn, &t when the County talked

about spreading out their operations among multpletrooms to process people
faster, that within that same process they actuallgoved parking because the
new addition took some of the previously existipgees. She said if the CCO
was granted, she believed additional conditionsdeegeto be included, noting

there were not real guidelines for the Town as l@atwvould constitute a problem
and that was being left up to Town staff to detaeemi Ms. Read said there were
no metrics or measurements in place that wouldvallown staff to make that

determination, and that she believed the Countyldvoeed to agree on those
measurements or metrics ahead of time so thatdbwlg not dispute the findings

later on.

Ms. Read said she also had a problem with the sléson earlier in that this was
an option in place that had not received approeal yshe said additionally, she
believed that, as the proposal was currently wrjttehe disagreed with the
statement that in a 6 month process it alloweddbenty to pursue other options.
Ms. Read said her reading of the current propasabhly the option of the gravel
parking lot and did not allow the County to pursigmversations with the Eno
River Parking Deck owners or acquisition of otheaikble parking in Town.
She said that needed to be an explicit conditicappfoval.

Holly Reid, after having been sworn, stated she regsesenting the Eno River
Association and agreed with Ms. Hough's commer@ke said the proposal was
uncharacteristic of Orange County, and was dismdyethe process and by the
lack of a progressive solution. Ms. Reid said tdel/ not make parking lots of
their assets, and the assets at River Park shauldréserved. She said the
geothermal systems there were very expensive hthéyhe planned Mountains to
the Sea Trail, and they had a stream restoratiojegiron site. Ms. Reid said
what irony it would be to have a stream restorafimyject where they were trying
to show how to slow down the runoff in one area prevent it from flowing into
the Eno and ending up in Falls Lake and addingh® impairment to the
watershed, and yet they might be willing to putaaskpg lot right next to that.
She said that was a ridiculous suggestion in han@p Ms. Reid reiterated that
this plan was uncharacteristic of the County anliebed they could come up
with a much better solution by working together.

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



19

Mr. Hartkopf said he would like the Board to hehe tstaff’'s reaction to the

revised plan that had been proposed and get soedbdek with regards to the
items noted on the list of concerns from staff. ddel the question in his mind at
this point was not whether this would be built drather this would be approved,
but was it possible. He asked should the Boardnbiined to approve such a
proposal, and did they have any footing on whiclidoso. Mr. Hartkopf asked

Ms. Hauth to go down the list of concerns and spgeaach of the issues from the
staff's perspective.

Mr. Hartkopt said with regards to the stormwatempbance, there was some
confusion in his mind whether they considered drawée impervious surface or
not. Ms. Hauth said gravel was considered an impes surface. Mr. Hartkopf
asked would that not totally overload the site’p@rvious surface. Ms. Hauth
said it could, noting she would couch all of hemmoents by acknowledging that
it was a schematic plan with no engineering anddiiasving was not to a scale
where they could check measurements, so it didnotide impervious surface.
She said she would say that the site was requoellet no more than 60%
impervious, and it was likely very close to thatt lsould not say it was clearly
over.

Ms. Hauth said in the time that had passed sineg ltfad looked at the Justice
Facility addition and other things downtown, thewhowas mandated to be a
Phase 2 community which meant they had a higherdatd for stormwater
control mandated by the State. She said they ramdn look at nitrogen loading
as well as volume, and models could predict theditga of nitrogen from
stormwater that came off of paved and impervioudasas which impaired
streams, so that was a calculation that could e do the review of stormwater
plans.

Mr. Hartkopf said then the sources of nitrogen thaght come from this
particular use would be what. Ms. Hauth said pneidately the parking areas,
noting it was the deposit from the cars on the graand the pavement that
washed off. She said the vegetative buffer betwbenparking areas and the
water surface was one of the best mechanismsiwoviag nitrogen, but that was
designed to correct the impairment that alreadystedi and not to address
additional impairment that was added.

Mr. Hartkopf said in Item #1b, they had the worevdlopment” in quotes, and
asked what the significance was of that. Ms. Hasatid the Town’s floodplain
ordinance did not allow development within the flpain. She said they
exempted park facilities and things like a perpeuldir crossing for a road or a
utility, and a parking lot was considered “devela@mti under the floodplain
ordinance. Ms. Hauth said they had talked tonighbut conducting some
surveying to determine exactly where the floodplaias, and that would be
necessary.

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



20

Mr. Hartkopf said he believed the impact on stréaiffers was self-explanatory.

Ms. Hauth said they were uncertain whether theightrbe another stream on the
site with a drainage area, and whether or not tild/@ualify as a stream under
the Town’s ordinance and therefore require buffé8tie said again that it was a
schematic plan and there was a lot of engineedriggtdone.

Mr. Hartkopf asked if any of that from an enginagristandpoint had been

reviewed as far as the geothermal. Ms. Hauthisawds glossed over during the
Justice Facility addition but because they werepmoposing any work within the

immediate vicinity, so it was not looked at in detaBut, she said, she did not
know about the geothermal. Ms. Hauth said therg apgarently a traffic impact

analysis done during some of the early design arkhe early iterations of what

build out on the campus might look like, but thaswnot something that was
submitted to this Board or went through any kindotain process because it was
conceptual while the County was doing its plannaigwhat could be placed

there. So, she said, that site did not have didrahpact analysis when the

Justice Facility was built, but going on personagervations many times during
the day the left turn queue was very short andetheas not dedicated left turn

signals for traffic on East Margaret Lane to tuouthbound on South Churton

Street. Ms. Hauth said there was difficulty withfic northbound to make the

right hand turn at certain times of the day, andas a lot more traffic than a 33-
foot right-of-way was intended to handle.

Mr. Hartkopf asked was it safe to say that if thexses traffic proceeding east on
West Margaret Lane approaching South Churton Saeeéttraffic was trying to

turn left that was proceeding west on East Margaeete, that naturally the
eastbound right turning traffic had the right-ofywaver the westbound left
turning traffic. Ms. Hauth said that was her umstiending of how traffic law

worked, noting that the left turn was always lask.. Hartkopf said and now they
were talking about a lot more cars in that intetisec Ms. Hauth replied yes, and
they did not have the provision of placing an araeiwhat signal.

Mr. Hartkopf said at minimum the light would hawe e retuned. Ms. Hauth

said yes, and that would impact all traffic. She&lghey all knew how delicate

the flow of traffic was on Churton Street now ahd bne second difference in the
light cycle was huge. Ms. Hauth said getting tatt of sync would be huge, so
trying to introduce additional green time on Margdrane would have significant

repercussions. Mr. Hartkopf said it would ripple the entire length of Churton

Street. Ms. Hauth agreed.

Ms. Hauth said the impact on documented archeabgi®as had been discussed
at the previous meeting, noting that the identif)agking area had been identified
as a designated area that had resources in it.s&@ties they had learned at the
last meeting, sometimes the best thing to do witheological resources was to
cover them to protect them and allow them to remaus. Hauth said they did
not know how much grading would be necessary tahmttparking lot in, noting

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



21

if it was fill from an archeological standpoint thaas better than a cut. But, she
said, they just did not know.

Mr. Hartkopf said it was his understanding that thstallation of that parking
area would require some excavation and subsoil vahrend the addition of fill
and stone. He asked if any archeological artifaats been identified in the area.
Ms. Trueblood said the study area as outlined énatttheological report was the
western square of that parking lot. She said thene over 30 wells dug in that
area that produced significant artifacts.

Ms. Hauth stated the wells Ms. Trueblood was refgrito were a series of
borings.

Mr. Hammersley said they would not be doing a lbtdmging in the area,
explaining that they would scrape off 3 to 4 incleégopsoil and compact the
subgrade. He said that area was relatively atod goade for parking so not a lot
of cut would be required because they would foltbes terrain.

Ms. Hauth said as to screening and landscaping, wlealld have screening and
landscaping requirements for the visibility of gharking lot from South Churton

Street and requirements for shade within the pgrka. She said she was not
saying the lot would need it, but that they had donhe the calculations to

determine that.

Ms. Hauth said regarding Historic District Commossiapproval of tree removal,
the Commission had the ability as part of the @eatie of Appropriateness and
in looking at the gravel lot for its appropriateseso also look at the
appropriateness of removing a number of the tr& s said on the drawings you
could actually start to see the number of treepgsed for removal from the site.

Ms. Trueblood said the Historic District Commissibad similar standards to
follow similar to what was in the Zoning Ordinanc&he said the Commission
was charged with following the Historic District §ign Guidelines and quoted
the guidelines that would pertain to this plant Were approved. Ms. Trueblood
said under “Site Features and Plantings,” the requént was to retain and
preserve the historic site features and plantihgs rielated to buildings and their
settings such as topography, mature trees, heggelss and circulation, and
foundation plantings where appropriate. She shident on to say to protect
significant site features including mature treed mmown archeological resources
from damage or as a result of construction.

Ms. Trueblood said under the “Archeological Fealrguidelines, it said to
retain and preserve known archeological featuraswiere significant to the site
or Historic District, to maintain and protect knowancheological features from
damage during or as a result of construction o sork, that it was not
appropriate to use heavy equipment or machinernDwtrict sites containing

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



22

significant archeological resources, and to minergrading site disturbances and
other changes in terrain within the Historic Didtiio reduce the potential damage
to known or unknown archeological resources.

Ms. Trueblood said those were the types of guidslithat the Historic District
Commission would have to apply to any plan, onagirexered, to prove that the
plan was meeting the guidelines in order to be ablgrant a Certificate of
Appropriateness. She said any removal of a treadZes or more in diameter
had to have a Certificate of Appropriateness, ahd believed there was
something like 40 trees that would have to be resdowhich would be a
significant portion of the Commission’s deliberaiso

Ms. Hauth said the last issue was the impact togdwthermal HVAC system,
which they were not specifically knowledgeable gbdwaw that exactly operated.
But, she said, it had not struck them that it wontamally be located under a
parking lot. So, she said, they would want to maketain that that could
continue to function if the lot was built as propds

Mr. Hammersley said they had designed other geathlewell systems where

they were indeed under a parking lot because itavgsod use of the land. He
said that would not be an issue and they wouldoakt to disturb that system as a
part of putting the parking lot in place. Mr. Hamrsley said they would do the
minimal amount of disturbance possible in that aasa would not look at cutting

that area down because of the wells and the ambtieal resources. He said if
they were not allowed to remove as many treeseyshhd noted, then they would
get as many spaces out of the area as possibl@whthse limitations.

Mr. Hartkopf said it appeared the position of sta#fs that they did not have near
enough information to indicate whether the parkotgcould ever be made to be
appropriate, noting there appeared to be someyrkald stops in the list. Ms.

Hauth said she believed there was certainly somebeu of parking spaces that
could be constructed, and would not say that theeearea was a no build area.
She said but, she would not hazard a guess aswonieny spaces could be
constructed.

Mr. Hornik said under the Zoning Ordinance the agpit would have the right to
have parking on the site but it would be subjecsatisfying all of those other
requirements, for example stormwater, floodplairstéfic District Commission

approval and the like. He said all of those comsitions would go into the site
plan review process to determine where, how muet, under what conditions
parking could be provided on that site.

Mr. Hartkopf said he had a question about languag@age 11 of the handout
provided by the County, where it said to pleaser@amp the proposal in some
form or deny, as a continuance had the effect démial without allowing the

County recourse. Mr. Hornik said the idea was th#te issue was continued,

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



23

then it essentially had the same effect as a denide said the County’s
preference would be that some decision be madgtbsbd that they could then
pursue whatever options they might want to pursMi. Hornik said if it was a

denial they could choose to appeal, and if it wag@proval with conditions they
could determine whether or not those conditionsveeceptable.

Mr. Whitmore said he did not know what the realr¢fati argument was, in that
he had no clear picture. He wondered if staff dquiovide some understanding
of what that shortfall was at present. Ms. Hawgked if he wanted the number
under the ordinance or the number that staff thougts their best guess. Mr.
Whitmore said he would like to know both.

Ms. Trueblood said, based on the current ordinaara employee counts, and
gross floor area provided by the County, if you eviyoking at just the Justice
Facility and the DA buildings only, the deficit w249 spaces. She said if you
expanded that to East Campus, which was propossahat point by the County,

then the deficit was 259. She said the second gdatie question was a little

more difficult because she did not believe theres wayone present who could
say what the deficit was in reality. Ms. Trueblogald the courts had not been
operating at full capacity, the Link Building waetmecessarily operating at full
capacity, and the Government Services Annex wasaogéssarily operating at
full capacity. She said because there was vaqaadesin those buildings, the
reality of the parking was an unknown number. Msueblood said that

conducting the downtown parking study had nevembaened at establishing

what the deficit might be at the Justice Facilitgting the intent of the study was
to get a handle on whether or not they were pragidiufficient and adequate
parking in the downtown area.

Ms. Trueblood said that Phase 1 of that study sHotlvat they were not in the
“red” currently, but that study was done before @winty offices were occupied.
She said in Phase 2 they would obviously look atithpact of the court system
and impact of the County facilities on the wesedny looking at such measures
as turnover rates and vacancy rates of parking safd there were numbers and
measures that tended to put the vacancy rate at@%%6 which did include the
parking deck. But, she said, no one knew whatr¢laé deficiency number was
for the Justice Facility. Ms. Trueblood said ifuytooked at what had been
proposed in the draft UDO, the number was somewheteeen 100 and 220
spaces, which was a very wide range. She saidwvsiidd be uncomfortable
narrowing that range in any way without being ablesee what the effect would
be when full court was in session in June. Mseblood said at the same time,
she did not know what the parking needs would be 2 years or even 10 years
from now at that site, and she would not be abléetermine that over the course
of the summer because there was office spacellsat. fi

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



24

Mr. Whitmore said there was certainly more workbt done as far as parking
studies. Ms. Trueblood said that would be doneamdigss of the Board’'s
decision on this application.

Mr. Sain said he was not sold on the gravel parkiatgnoting it would be an
eyesore coming into Town. He said as well, he nld like the idea that
constructing it depended on the perceived need.favir. Sain said the plan did
not meet current requirements and that lot may meeduilt.

Mr. Remington said one of Mr. Sikes’ expectatiorasswhat the applicant was to
come back with a “creative solution” to the parkiague, and believed the Board
had concurred on that. He said he was not coupntintpe “nuclear option” being
a creative solution, and the believed that was whaty had gotten. Mr.
Remington said it was not a back stop or at leastthat would stop a very fast
pitch. He said given all the concerns about whretihenot the parking lot could
be built and, if so, whether the number of spacesldvbe adequate to satisfy the
current ordinance requirements, he saw that aseldse situation all around.
Mr. Remington said he had made the comment at dse rheeting that he
certainly would not want to see things going thméaion as far as taking that
area and placing a parking lot there. He saiday mot be the intent but if felt
like they were getting their noses rubbed in theim ordinance and in their
attempts to find ways to follow it.

Mr. Remington said what they had said about thehBuor Tech lot was being

misconstrued, noting he did not believe any of Board’'s directions were that
that lot was off the table. He said what the Bdzad said was it was off the table
as far as directing the public to park there add the bus to the downtown. Mr.
Remington said what had originally been proposesl that it would be employee
parking, and he believed it really had been propoaed they had provided a lot
of room to accommodate that. He said the bus systripled with some sort of
voucher or reimbursement system so that employeeddwnot have to pay to

park was a viable option. Mr. Remington said sacfystem might be needed
only a few times a month, and that appeared toedbatively less expensive

compared to the cost of planning and constructfamarking lot. He said he did
not believe the Board had gotten what it asked dod to his mind they were
getting farther apart, not closer together.

Mr. Hartkopf said he agreed with Mr. Remington’srooents, noting he believed
they were being handed a nuclear option. He $edotoblem he had with that
was that then they would live under the threat ofually assured destruction,
noting no one wanted to see a parking lot on therri Mr. Hartkopf said he

honestly did not believe the County wanted to ded, teither. He said he
believed there were other areas that could be asedpark and ride for County
employees, and believed the process could be weettiencourage, to voucher,
to assure a positive parking place with sheltemfthe elements at any of those

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



25

places for a lot less money, time, and trouble than parking lot plan put
forward.

Mr. Hartkopf said he had learned recently that paeent company of Lowe’s
Foods had decided not to renew its lease locatedtoghe new Orange County
Social Services location. He said as of Octobénatatest, that entire parking lot
would become available as well. Mr. Hartkopf s#it was an unfortunate
business closing but another opportunity. He ghgl fact that the County
Commissioners approved a plan that said the cibexl to park at Durham Tech
and ride a bus downtown to pay a fine or whatelss they had to do was fine,
but the County employees having to ride on a shod ride was wholly

unacceptable was something that really needed widoeissed with the County
Commissioners in earnest. Mr. Hartkopf said if @aunty thought so little of the
people who elected them, then he believed theyatktxbe called on that.

Mr. Sikes said the original condition of the sitarpapproval was straightforward,
in that it required the presentation of acceptaklmote parking facilities and
process documents covering the operation thereofebeived. He said that
condition as of today had not been met, and sinednéaring had been continued
there had been no substantive attempt, as far &sdwe, to meet that condition.
Mr. Sikes said, as the Town Attorney had notediearsimply providing those
documents would have made this a moot point. H#tea County had simply
not meet the condition of the site plan approval.

Mr. Whitmore said the proposed parking plan wag@ah horse, in that it was
not legitimate and was not good government on #reqf the County to have put
that out there. He said he believed they knew thag an uproar from the
citizenry, and if they had done more homework anftbodplain they would have
know the plan would not work. Mr. Whitmore said elieved they also knew
the plan would not be acceptable to the Historistitit Commission due to the
number of trees to be removed, and they were nagdwave the required number
of parking spaces. So, he said, the plan did eleesany of the problems.

Mr. Whitmore said of the 4 points that were pro#firthe only one that seemed
reasonable to him was that the current draft UDQ@dméfied so that they would
understand where they were going. He said theye wbiarged with making
decisions on what is and not what might be, bumnfthe County standpoint it
made sense to try to develop a plan that would i@rkhe Town and its citizens
and made certain that they were not caught in ggmua of traffic. Mr.
Whitmore said they were working to figure that thutough the parking studies
and with the new UDO guidelines, whatever theyedrout to be, but for them to
make a decision when they knew they were makinghgés and that the
ordinance was parking heavy seemed unreasonalhles iopinion. He said the
proposed site plan with the gravel parking lot geapproved by the County
Commissioners was a very slippery slope, noting ttwild not find money for a
shuttle service and they could not find money @ thotivation to go to the

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



MOTION:
VOTE:

26

obvious place of the Eno River Parking Deck owmaosths and months ago to
negotiate a contract. Mr. Whitmore said the likebd of the County funding any
of that was very slim in his opinion. He said iis bpinion he did not feel the
plan was a genuine offer.

Mr. Sain said he concurred with Mr. Whitmore’s reksa

John Roberts, having been sworn, indicated that Board of County
Commissioners would be meeting on May 18, 2010 @ruic comment would
be taken.

Mr. Remington moved to close the Public Hearinblr. Sain seconded.
Unanimous.

Discussion:

Mr. Sikes asked if this was an appeal. Mr. Hosakd he believed it was really
an application to modify the condition of the sgi@n approval. He said if the
Board denied it, the previous approval remainedcint Mr. Sikes said if the
County were to comply with that previous approviagn the CO could be issued
for the Justice Facility.

Mr. Sain said if they granted the CCO, they would @p in the same situation
the found themselves in now.

Mr. Sikes said if they denied the change to theviptes conditionally approved

site plan, was there any timeframe involved for @wunty. He said right now,

that site had not technically been approved. Nkessaid it had been approved
conditionally, but if that condition was not metthit was not approved. Mr.

Hornik said the County had not satisfied the caadibf the site plan. He said
right now the County had a conditional CO for wtinety were occupying, but not
the old facility.

Mr. Hartkopf said he believed Mr. Sikes’ questioasmvhen the County could
come back before the Board.

Mr. Sikes said that was correct, and asked cowdtllib the next meeting if they
brought process documents showing the remote mgarplan and that all
conditions had been met. Mr. Hornik said there wasprohibition on them
coming back with process documents that were aasbkpt or some other
proposal.

The Board briefly discussed the approval of thegioal site plan and what the
process would be if the County came back with psamcuments or some other
proposal. Also discussed was the conditional GlDirsteffect that was planned
to be closed out when the construction was comgleteting that CCO was still
in effect and was somewhat open-ended.

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



MOTION:

27

Ms. Hauth said it was within the discretion of 8eard to give direction to staff
without the existing CCO for the new part of thelding, if they choose to do so.
Or, she said, to extend it.

Mr. Hartkopf asked if the CCO had an expirationredaMs. Hauth replied no, but
the longer they lingered the more problematic itlsidoecome.

Ms. Trueblood remarked that such CCO’s were gelyeisdued for 30, 60, or 90
days, and this one had been operating for overaa y®s. Hauth said that was
because it was tied to completing the renovations.

Mr. Hartkopf said then it would raise staff's comtftevel if some time limit was
placed on that. Ms. Hauth said she only wantedh#dke sure the Board was
aware of that conditional issue.

Mr. Hartkopf said after reviewing items la-h and32and 4, he had significant
reservations about any sort of approval. He saidesaspects of the plan were
simply not knowable at this point, and some of dud have to be under very
intricate conditions which could not be formulatezlv. Mr. Hartkopf said some

of it was kicking the can so far down the street ihwould abdicate this Board’s

responsibility.

Mr. Remington said basically the Board was sayimaf they had grave doubts
about whether the parking lot as proposed or anthefother provisions met the
need of the current ordinance due to questionstabbather the parking could
ever meet all the requirements. And, he said, ndrat met their best perception
of what the needs for parking were.

Mr. Hornik said that he believed when a motion weede, the Board needed to
provide direction as to why they had made the dmtidut it did not have to be
as detailed as findings of fact.

Mr. Remington moved to deny the CCO based onltkenative parking plan that
had been provide due to the Board’s conclusiontti@proposed parking lot can
not be constructed with the adequate number ofespand that the plan did not
address the parking needs for the facilityr. Whitmor e seconded.

Mr. Hartkopf offered a friendly amendment to inddu that the Board also
believed that the plan could not meet the Town\drenmental requirements and
the Neuse River watershed requirements; and, lilegplan abdicated the Board’s
responsibilities to deal with known findings of fac

Mr. Remington added an amendment to his motiomeétude that there would
likely be adverse impacts to documented archeadbgasources as well.

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



VOTE:

ITEM #5:

ITEM #6:

28

Mr. Hartkopf asked if the Board wanted to take thgt with the County
Commissioners, or was that possible. Mr. Horngpmnded that once the Board
made its decision there was nothing that prohibtteem from addressing the
County Board about the process either individuatighrough a spokesperson for
the Board if the Board was of a single mind.

The vote on the motion to deny as amended wastedlopanimously.

Review of Final Order for Orange County Justice Facility parking lot
screening appeal. This casewas decided at the April 28, 2010 Boar d meeting.
Mr. Hartkopf stated that as no motion was madestomsider, he would sign the
Final Order for the Orange County Justice Facp#yking lot screening appeal.

Committee and Staff reports.

Planning Board:
Mr. Remington stated the Planning Board had heMbek session to discuss the
UDO rewrite, and mostly discussed buffer requirethi@md the tree ordinance.

Other:

Mr. Hartkopf noted as he had mentioned earlierihwe’s Foods store would be
closing their store in south Hillsborough in OctobeHe said the owner, Alex
Lee, desired to have a store that concentrated orofeesh fruit and other fresh
foods, and to have a larger store for that purpose.

Mr. King noted that with new members having receittéen appointed to the
Board, a training session for all was mot likelyarder. He said that since ther
will most likely be a June 9, 2010 Board meetingptaer meeting may need to be
scheduled for training.

Mr. Hartkopf offered his appreciation and congratigins to the Board, noting
they had had to deal with some tough issues andBtlaed had stepped in and
done a good job. He said the fact that they wesading into new water that
they did not know the depth of was disconcerting, the Board was holding up
quite well.

Mr. Remington said the next Planning Board meetvags next week and he
believed one of the agenda items would be the appents of liaisons to other
boards. He said his appointment would be comingroend in a couple of
months so the Planning Board would need to chooka&isan to the Board of
Adjustment.

Mr. Hartkopf said that he could only hope that theyuld be able to get someone
with Mr. Remington’s botanical knowledge and leliebd to fill that seat, noting
he had been a constant fountain of knowledge sodiog areas that they needed
to be cognizant of, such as the environment andnitigenous plant life, in that

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



ITEM #7:

29

as people who hashed through ordinances they werg/pically well versed in
that. Mr. Hartkopf said he appreciated Mr. Reminggharing that knowledge
with them as well as his very distinct way of lawodiat issues.

Mr. Remington said it had been a real pleasureteeson the Board, noting they
were people who came from all sorts of differertiamks and occupations and it
had been a wonderful example of how people witfetght perspectives could
meld and be reasonable about things to make thedBsteonger and do a better
job.

Adjourn.

Mr. Sikes moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:39 p.Mr. Sain seconded. The
motion was adopted unanimously.

Approved:

Tom King, AICP, CZO
Senior Planner
Secretary to the Board

Board of Adjustment
May 12, 2010



